
Town of Camden 
Select Board Meeting 

November 12, 2013 – 6:30 PM 
Washington Street Conference Room 

Select Board meetings are broadcast live on Time Warner Channel 22 
Select Board meetings are web streamed at www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Citizen Comments (for items not on the agenda) 
 This item is set aside for members of the public to comment on any town-related issue that 

is not on the agenda.  We ask that people keep comments within 3 minutes. 
 
3. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 
 

A.  Recognition of the Ragged Mountain Redevelopment Capital Campaign Committee 
and Foundation Members 

 
B.  Report by Camden Fire Chief Chris Farley  
 
C.  Presentation of the Riverwalk and Public Landing Concept Design Plans 
 

 4.  Select Board Member Reports 
 
 5.  Town Manager Report 

 
6. Approval of Select Board Minutes dated October 15, 2013 
 
7. New Business: 
 
A. Authorize the Town Manager to enter into an Agreement with Gartley and Dorsky for 

Engineering Services for the Redevelopment of the Ragged Mountain Recreational Area. 
 
B. Authorize the Town Manager to enter into an Agreement with Stevens Engineering for 

Design and Construction Engineering Services for Installation of the Chair Lifts at the 
Snow Bowl. 

 
C. Authorize the submission of a grant application to the Maine Dept of Conservation’s 

Recreational Trail Program (RTP) for $36,605 with the local match not to exceed 
$7,321. 

 
D. Consideration of Easement with Wayfarer Marine Corporation for a sanitary 

wastewater  pump station on Sea Street. 
 
E. Consideration of renewal victualer's license for Francine Bistro at 55 Chestnut Street. 

Page 1 of 2 

 

http://www.townhallstreams.com/locations/camden-me


 
F. Public Hearing:   Liquor license for Francine Bistro at 55 Chestnut Street. 
 
G. Approval of the Town Manager’s Recommended FY13 Carry Forward Amounts 
 
H. Request to approve a tax abatement on property located at 9 Powder Mill for tax year 

2012. 
 
I. Consideration of Requests for  Poverty Abatements  (Executive Session  36 MRSA § 

841.2.E) 
 

8. Select Board Closing Comments 
                                                                                                                 

 
Adjourn 
 

*********** 
 
Convene Meeting of the Board of Assessors  
 
Board of Assessors 
 
Consideration of requests from Assessors Agent Wesley Robinson for abatements and 
supplemental tax warrants for the 2013-2014 tax year. 
           
1. Request to approve an abatement in taxes of $84.24 to Douglas J Kindell and Karen I 

Kindell for property located at 10 Sand St (Map 114-161-000-000)   to allow for a 
reduction in the assessed value due to eligibility for the Veteran’s Exemption 

 
2. Request to approve an abatement  in taxes of $676.73 to Alexandra L Degenhardt and 

John Blystone for property located at 11 Beacon Ave (Map 126-059-000-000) and 
approve a supplemental tax warrant of $676.73 to Joseph A Magner & Joann Magner for 
the same property 

 
3. Request to approve an abatement in taxes of $102.49 to David Johnson for property 

located at 15 Mt Battie St, St (Map 114-120-000-000) due to the property not being 
classified properly and a portion of the building being demolished. 

 
4. Request to approve an abatement in business personal taxes of $1,082.48 to 

Norumbega Bed & Breakfast LLC located at 63 High Street  (Map 123-022-000-000) and 
to approve a supplemental tax warrant to 63 High St LLC, for business personal 
property of $1,082.48. 

 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 



Inter-office memorandum 
 

November 07, 2013 
 
To:    Pat Finnigan, Camden Town Manager 
From:   Brian S. Hodges, Camden Development Director 
Subject:  Final versions of Riverwalk and Public Landing Plans 
 
The final versions of the Riverwalk and Public Landing plans were delivered by TY Lin International 
on November 01, 2013 and immediately made available to the public.  This project began with the 
unanimous approval of the Select Board on 09/18/2012 to submit 2 grant applications supporting this 
project.  We successfully received both grants with the understanding 2 separate reports would need 
to be delivered. Through a competitive bid process, 11 firms submitted proposals, 3 were interviewed, 
and TY Lin of Falmouth was unanimously recommended by the selection team and approved by the 
Select Board 03/05/2013. 
 
After a series of 4 public, community wide meetings, discussions with town committees, 3 meetings 
with a 20 member work group assembled to guide the consultant and town staff, and dozens of one 
on one interviews, I am pleased to present these plans in hopes of them being accepted and 
approved by the Select Board.  I am particularly impressed with these plans because not only do they 
reflect all of the hopes and potential opportunities the projects represent, they are designed to be 
scalable.  For example, the Public Landing includes 3 different designs with increasing amounts of 
pedestrian focused elements.  Each of the designs overlaps with the other so we don’t risk having to 
undo work if we decide to implement bolder or additional designs at a later date.  The Riverwalk is 
also designed using a phased or segmented approach.  You will observe the 2 ¼ mile length is 
broken into manageable projects. 
 
Both reports include cost estimates for the individual elements that make up the designs.  These 
plans are now ours; we decide what, when, and how we implement them.  Until now, we have not had 
this level of information to make these kinds of decisions.  We can confidently move forward with 
having this solid data as well as a thorough and comprehensive public input process.  Not every 
element in each of the plans will appeal to everyone.  Again, we now have the information to make 
more informed decisions but also know that these do represent a relatively middle ground of 
community sentiment. 
 
A series of FAQs for both projects has been included. 
 
Recommended action:   
Motion to accept and approve the Public Landing and Riverwalk plans as presented and schedule a 
follow up action item to provide guidance on how to best move these forward. 
 
. 



10/31/2013                                                                                         1 
 

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

Riverwalk 

1. Why are we building a riverwalk?  Aren’t there better ways to spend 

money? 

It is important to first point out that this report is design recommendations not 

construction plans.  If we were to pursue any of these recommendations, further 

work would need to be conducted.  This is providing us with information to decide 

what, if any, changes we want to pursue.  The idea of constructing a riverwalk is 

not new.  It came up as a significant topic during the creation of the Downtown 

Master Plan in 2012 but it also has roots with Camden’s Comprehensive Plan 

and the Camden/Rockport Pathways Committee.  The idea of creating a 

riverwalk is based on listening to the community and imagining where it might go 

and what it could look like.  By adding another amenity to Camden, it makes it 

more appealing to spend time here and relax therefore encouraging more people 

to come to Camden year round and spend more time in the downtown.  It also 

would be an amenity for residents to be proud of and enjoy.  This then assists all 

of us, from businesses, to property owners, to residents. 

 

There are often competing interests for how to allocate the Town’s budget.  We 

want to balance the critical needs to ensure Camden is a safe and supportive 

environment to its citizens, businesses, and visitors with opportunities to ensure 

the significance Camden has always had is maintained if not strengthened. 

 

2. Is anyone going to use this? 

Yes, the notion of utilizing Camden’s natural asset of the Megunticook River for a 

riverwalk is not a new idea.  This has come up in a number of discussions from 

the Camden Rockport Pathways Committee to Camden’s Comprehensive Plan 

to the Camden Downtown Master Plan, to name a few.  There has not yet been a 

concentrated effort until now to determine feasibility, community reaction, cost 

estimates, and benefit.  Camden is a recently designated Active Community 

Environment.  This is supported by the Active Living Research organization that 

reports: 

 People who live in neighborhoods with sidewalks on most streets are 47% 
more likely to be active at least 30 minutes/day 

 Students who walked to school every day had 24 more minutes of physical 
activity/day 

 A study in Nebraska found that for every $1 spent on trails, there was almost 
$3 in savings in direct medical costs 

 People who live near trails are 50% more likely to meet physical activity 
guidelines 



10/31/2013                                                                                         2 
 

 People who live in walkable communities are 2 times as likely to get enough 
physical activity as those who don’t 

 

3. How is this being paid for?  Are my taxes going to increase? 

This project is strictly to create schematic designs, cost estimates, and economic 

impact for a riverwalk that runs 2 ¼ miles from Shirttail Point Park to Camden 

Harbor so we can have good information to decide what our options are.  This 

current project does not involve construction.  A $15,000 grant was obtained from 

the Maine Coastal Program and matched with $5,000 from the Sidewalks and 

Pathways Reserve fund.  Therefore, your property tax has not changed to 

support this effort.  If any of the recommendations are pursued at a later date, we 

will look for other sources of funds to support the changes.  The report contains 

sources for funding construction of the riverwalk. 

4. Who is deciding where this goes and what it will look like? 

Four public, community-wide meetings have been held to hear and collect 

suggestions concerning the riverwalk.  Also, one on one interviews were held 

with anyone who expressed an interest.  Some private property owners were 

eager to allow the riverwalk on their property, some are waiting to see how the 

project progresses, and others have not expressed interest.  In addition, a work 

group was formed at the beginning of the project with representation from town 

committees, businesses, property owners, and town staff.  This work group also 

provided input to assist in guiding Town staff and the consultants.  We have 

taken all of this input and come up with the report that has been delivered.  

Similar to the Downtown Master Plan in 2012, the Select Board will decide at 

their November 12th meeting whether to accept the report and what the next 

steps will be. 

5. Who is going to maintain it and what is that going to cost? 

The Town will be responsible for the riverwalk as it is primarily located on Town 

property.  In those places where the riverwalk would be located on private 

property, the Town will need to make arrangements with the willing property 

owner concerning access, easements, ownership, responsibility, etc. 

6. I have property on the Megunticook River. Are you going to put the 

riverwalk across my property even if I don’t want it? 

No.  We are not planning to forcibly acquire private property.  There are enough 

available segments for us to pursue construction there, pending availability of 

funds.  Over time, we anticipate those property owners who were neutral or 

hesitant may see the benefit of having their property included in the riverwalk.  

This is an approach that has been successfully used in other locations. 

7. How is this economic development? 

Economic Development is a term encompassing many functions.  It can include 

business development, such as helping new business but also assisting with the 



10/31/2013                                                                                         3 
 

retention of existing business.  It can also include community development efforts 

such as assisting with programs and events in the community, building new 

sidewalks and improving infrastructure, and also working on projects such as the 

Public Landing and Riverwalk design projects.  Camden is fortunate to have so 

many natural assets from the harbor, to the mountains, to lakes, and to the 

Megunticook River.  Other communities are not as abundant in their natural 

assets.  Having a river flowing from a park to the center of the downtown is an 

asset to our community and the region.  A riverwalk would provide yet another 

feature to bring new businesses and entrepreneurs, bring additional visitors who 

may stay an extra day or two because we have so much to offer, and provide a 

proven means of increasing the health of our community’s residents.  From our 

Camden Downtown Master Plan completed in 2012, a riverwalk was also 

recommended as a means to connect peripheral parking areas to our downtown 

and promote the breadth of our entire downtown vs. the singular Elm St/Main St 

corridor. 

8. Is the Tannery site going to be a park now? 

This project’s scope does not include determining how the former Apollo Tannery 

site (116 Washington St) should be used in light of constructing a riverwalk.  

Therefore, the approach being used by the Town is to continue having the 

Tannery site be promoted as a commercial opportunity in order to bring in new 

jobs and taxes. 

9. When do I get to vote on this? 

There is not a vote scheduled for this report because it is only a series of 

recommendations of what could be done, what it might cost, and what the 

benefits would be.  When you read the report, you will observe that the full 2 ¼ 

mile distance of a potential riverwalk is actually comprised of a series of 

segments.  As funding sources become available, different phases can be 

constructed with a long term goal of connecting the riverwalk end to end from 

Shirttail Point Park to Camden Harbor.  A good analogy is a cookbook in that a 

person does not immediately make every recipe contained in the book.  The 

report will be presented to the Camden Select Board at their regularly scheduled 

meeting of Tuesday November 12th at 6:30PM.  This is a public meeting and 

anyone is welcome to attend.  Similar to the Downtown Master Plan process in 

2012, the Select Board will decide whether or not to accept the report and what 

the next steps in the process will be. 

10. What activities will be permitted or prohibited on the Riverwalk? 

The riverwalk schematic designs are based on a non-motorized, 

bicycle/pedestrian pathway.  Some examples of acceptable use include walkers, 

joggers, and bicyclists but All Terrain Vehicles (ATVs) would not be acceptable.  

Segments will be ADA compliant.  Points of interest have been identified with 



10/31/2013                                                                                         4 
 

recommendations of installing displays or kiosks that provide interesting 

information about the history, flora, and fauna. 



10/31/2013                                                                                         1 
 

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

Public Landing 

1. Why are we changing the Public Landing?  It serves our parking needs and 

we continue to be voted Best Harbor. 

It is important to first point out that this report is design recommendations not 

construction plans.  If we were to pursue any of these recommendations, further 

work would need to be conducted.  This is providing us with information to decide 

what, if any, changes we want to pursue.  The idea of revisiting the best uses of 

the Public Landing is not new.  It came up as a significant topic during the 

creation of the Downtown Master Plan in 2012.  A group had been formed 

several years ago to look into possible changes.  In fact, some of the notable 

individuals in Camden’s history (i.e. Mary Louise Bok and the Olmstead Brothers) 

envisioned the Public Landing having more plantings and green elements.   

 

Camden has been named Best Harbor for a number of years but the harbor is 

separate from the Public Landing.  In its current form, the Public Landing is a 

large, asphalt parking lot.  Over the years, other public parking has been added 

such as at the Public Safety Complex and now behind the Knox Mill.  The idea of 

changing the Public Landing is based on listening to the community and 

imagining what that space could look like.  By making it more appealing to spend 

time in and relax, it would encourage more people to come to Camden year 

round and spend more time in the downtown.  It also would be an amenity for 

residents to be proud of and enjoy.  This then assists all of us, from businesses, 

to property owners, to residents. 

2. How is this being paid for?  Are my taxes going to increase? 

This project is strictly to create schematic designs, cost estimates, and economic 

impact for a redesigned Public Landing so we can have good information to 

decide what our options are.  The current project does not involve construction.  

A $15,000 grant was obtained from the Maine Coastal Program and matched 

with $5,000 from the Economic Development Reserve fund.  Therefore, your 

property tax has not changed to support this effort.  If any of the recommended 

design changes are pursued at a later date, we will look for other sources of 

funds to support the changes.  The report contains sources to consider in order 

to fund changes. 

3. Who is deciding what the design should be? 

Four public, community-wide meetings have been held to hear and collect 

suggestions concerning changes in design.  Also, one on one interviews were 

held with anyone who expressed an interest.  Some suggestions have been to 

make no changes, some have been to remove all parking and replace with green 



10/31/2013                                                                                         2 
 

space, and some have been a balance of the two.  In addition, a work group was 

formed at the beginning of the project with representation from town committees, 

businesses, property owners, and town staff.  This work group also provided 

input to assist in guiding Town staff and the consultants.  We have taken all of 

this input and come up with the report that has been delivered.  The Select Board 

will decide at their November 12th meeting whether to accept the report and what 

the next steps will be. 

4. I’ve heard there will be a bridge.  Is that true? 

The design report does include information about a bridge, if we decide to have 

one built.  Some like the idea, some do not.  This will now give us insight as to 

whether it’s feasible, cost, and what considerations we would need to keep in 

mind if we do pursue it. 

5. I’ve heard there will be railings along the boardwalk/pier.  Is that true? 

Similar to the question about the bridge, the report does contain information 

about railings including cost.  The recommendation is that we install railings in 

certain areas of the boardwalk.  With the report, we now have the information to 

make a more informed decision.  Community input indicated, in general, cable 

railings would be preferred as they would minimize views being blocked while still 

providing safety for residents and visitors. 

6. Somebody told me there is a dog park being added? 

A dog park is not recommended on the Public Landing but you will see a smaller, 

dog rest area has been included as a recommendation.  The size will not be 

conducive for dogs to run around but will be an area so they can “do their 

business”.  Through the public process, we heard a number of suggestions along 

these lines on behalf of residents, visitors, and those arriving from the water side.  

Proper signs, dog mitts, and trash receptacles will be provided and screening will 

be in place so nearby businesses and their customers will not be impacted. 

7. Where will everybody park if all those spaces go away? 

The Public Landing currently has a total of 99 spaces which includes handicap 

accessible and motorcycle.  As you read through the report, you will notice there 

are 3 different schematic designs.  The consultants crafted the designs so they 

are scalable.  The least change removes 09 spaces and the greatest change 

removes 31 spaces.  We want to point out that the most change actually triples 

the amount of green space however, compared to one-third reduction in parking.  

Therefore, it is important to see the other enhancements made as spaces are 

recommended for removal. 

 

The Town has been proactive since the creation of the Downtown Master Plan 

with looking for alternatives to immediate downtown parking.  In 2012, we gained 

106 spaces for all day, free parking behind the Knox Mill complex.  Those who 



10/31/2013                                                                                         3 
 

work in the downtown are strongly encouraged to use this space rather than 

parking along the downtown streets or on the Public Landing.  We will continue to 

pursue shared parking arrangements with other property owners in an effort to 

reduce some of the congestion, particularly during the busier months, so that 

pedestrians will be able to comfortably enjoy all of the many unique shops, 

restaurants, professional services, lodging, and natural beauty of Camden 

Harbor that our downtown offers.  

8. Will there be anything done about burying the power lines down there? 

Yes, you will notice the report contains this recommendation as well as what the 

associated costs would be. 

9. What’s happening to the Harbormaster building, Chamber of Commerce 

building, and hot dog stand? 

The Harbormaster building will be shifted slightly to the left, closer to the 

commercial fishermen area.  Our Harbormaster has confirmed this still provides 

the views he needs to be effective in his job.  The hot dog stand, known as 

Harbor Dogs, will stay where it is.  Additional seating is recommended throughout 

the Public Landing in order to support not only this business but others who sell 

food in close proximity of the harbor.  The Chamber of Commerce building will 

stay but is recommended to become a visitor center.  The Chamber currently 

houses its professional staff in 2 locations (here and in Rockland) but is looking 

into consolidating their professional offices into one location.  This seemed like a 

good time to make better use of the building by keeping its function as a visitor 

center but also relocating the public restrooms from where they currently are into 

this building. 

10. Will we still be able to walk down Commercial St, between Cappy’s and 

New England Real Estate? 

Yes.  In fact, the recommendations provide a clearly designated area for 

pedestrians to walk so they are not as likely to wander down the street itself and 

impede vehicles coming and going, as well as risk their personal safety.  In 

addition, the report recommends improving the alley between Cappy’s and Lily, 

Lupine, and Fern.  We heard many requests from our community outreach efforts 

to make this area more inviting and appealing. 

11. How is this economic development? 

Economic Development is a term encompassing many functions.  It can include 

business development, such as helping new business but also assisting with the 

retention of existing business.  It can also include community development efforts 

such as assisting with programs and events in the community, building new 

sidewalks and improving infrastructure, and also working on projects such as the 

Public Landing and Riverwalk design projects.  In its current form, the Public 

Landing itself is primarily a large parking lot that is adjacent to the natural beauty 



10/31/2013                                                                                         4 
 

of Camden Harbor.  Having a redesigned Public Landing will provide another 

amenity to encourage visitors to stay longer, thus providing more activity to 

shops, restaurants, and lodging establishments.  Providing alternatives for 

parking helps to mitigate any loss in spaces.  Improving the aesthetics of the 

Public Landing also adds to the overall attractiveness of the community and 

becomes a draw for new business and entrepreneurs to consider locating here. 

12. When do I get to vote on this? 

There is not a vote scheduled for this report because it is only a series of 

recommendations of what could be done, what it might cost, and what the 

benefits would be.  Many of the recommendations are stand alone 

recommendations.  They are not contingent on other elements being completed.  

For example, whether or not we construct a bridge will not impact combining the 

restrooms with the Chamber’s visitor center.  A good analogy is a cookbook in 

that a person does not make every recipe contained in the book.  The report will 

be presented to the Camden Select Board at their regularly scheduled meeting of 

Tuesday November 12th at 6:30PM.  This is a public meeting and anyone is 

welcome to attend.  Similar to the Downtown Master Plan process in 2012, the 

Select Board will decide whether or not to accept the report and what the next 

steps in the process will be. 

13.  Where will the delivery trucks go? 

The consultants were careful to design the vehicular patterns on the Public 

Landing to support delivery trucks up to a certain size, such as a xx foot box 

truck.  Larger trucks may need to park on side streets, as many currently do now, 

and walk their deliveries to the respective businesses.  While it may have been 

convenient for large trucks to park on the Public Landing and make nearby 

deliveries, it is not uncommon in other towns and cities for drivers to walk a 

certain distance for their deliveries. 

14.  What happens to the Public Landing if sea levels rise 2 feet?  3 feet? 

We are in the process of working with the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA) to understand possible impacts of flood levels.  This is a 

preliminary issue and may be a non-issue.  For example, Portland originally had 

many areas of their downtown in a potential flood zone but through continued 

discussions was able to have the zones more accurately drawn.  There is always 

a potential for Mother Nature to cause damage, even unrelated to flood zones.  

The report does take this into consideration but the type of changes envisioned 

would not be specific to concerns related to flood zone.  For example, moving the 

Harbormaster building will not be an issue with flood zones because it could be 

impacted where it is now.  Other design change recommendations could also be 

impacted by other natural damages such as ice storms, heavy rains, etc. 

 



  

Town of Camden 
Minutes of the Select Board Meeting 

October 15, 2013 
6:30pm 

  
 
 

PRESENT: Chairperson Martin Cates, John French, Jr., James Heard, Leonard Lookner, Donald 
White, and Town Manager Finnigan. Also present were members of the press and 
public. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:35pm. 

 
2. Communications, Presentations, and Recognitions 

 
a) Report by Jim Damicis of Camoin Associates:  Ragged Mountain Economic Impact 

 
Jim Damicis of Camoin Associates spoke about a recent study that measures the 
economic impact of the Ragged Mountain Recreational facility, primarily its winter 
operations. Damicis said that data collected showed 30,600 total skier days during the 
2012–2013 ski season and that the economic impact study measured how much these 
visitors spend. Results showed $2,107,401 in direct spending by skiers (i.e., food, drink, 
transportation, recreation and souvenirs), $1,042,721 in earnings produced by the 
facility, and 62 jobs supported. The total economic impact, including both direct and 
indirect sales and earnings, totaled $3.7 million in sales and $1.4 million in earnings, 
Damicsis reported.  
 
He continued by noting that 16% of the 30,600 annual visitors to the Snow Bowl came 
from the Town of Camden, 24% came from within a 30-minute drive, and 59% came 
from outside the 30-minute drive radius.  
 
The Board asked questions about the amount estimated for the Toboggan 
Championships. With a reported impact of $105,000, several thought that this seemed 
low, but Damisis said he could only work with the data that was available. The group 
also noted that if the vote passes on November 5, the proposed improvements to the 
facility are likely to substantially increase the current economic impact numbers.  
 
Lookner asked about full-time wages used in the study. Events such as weddings, use of 
the mountain biking trails, and lodging figures were also topics of discussion as none of 
this income had been included in the tally. 
 
Damisis was thanked by the Board for his work and for the helpful information that his 
company had produced. 
 

b) Report by School Superintendent Elaine Nutter  
 
Superintendent Elaine Nutter updated the Board on goals of the CSD and MSAD School 
Boards, which include renovating the middle school facility, looking at outsourcing 



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of the Meeting – Page 2 
October 15, 2013 
 

custodial services, and integrating technology at all levels at the schools. Lookner noted 
the historical significance of the Mary E. Taylor building. 
 

c) Presentation regarding exploring a micro-hydroelectric project at Montgomery 
Dam  
 
Students from the Wind Planners group at Camden Hills Regional High School spoke to 
the Board about a micro-hydro power project that could be incorporated into the dam 
improvements planned for this fall. The students requested conceptual approval from 
the Board so that they could continue planning for how the micro-hydroelectric project 
could be incorporated into the dam reconstruction. 
 
Donald White made a motion that the Board support the ideas presented by the Camden 
Hills Regional High School Wind Planners for a micro-hydro power project for the 
Montgomery Dam, and that it be referred to the Dam Committee for further study and 
implementation. Leonard Lookner seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  
 

d) Report by Lake Harbormaster Justin Twitchell  
 
Lake Harbormaster Justin Twitchell gave a season-end report to the Board and made 
several suggestions for improving safety on the Megunticook Lake. Twitchell’s ideas 
included setting out more marker buoys off Proctor Point; making the Route 52 boat 
ramp wheelchair accessible; and repairing storm damage at Land’s End. Lastly, 
Twitchell recommended that the Town consider creating an ordinance to regulate the 
number of private moorings on the lake. 
 

e) Quarterly Report by the Community and Economic Development Committee 
 
Deb Dodge, Chair of CEDAC, delivered the committee’s quarterly progress report. She 
told the Board that a point person from the committee had been assigned to follow up 
on each goal. Dodge reported that current projects include implementation of the 
downtown grant; partnering with the Opera House Committee to assist with an 
economic impact study; inventorying the second stories of downtown buildings; making 
incubator space available to attract new business; and researching how to market 
Camden to target audiences.  
 
Lastly Dodge delivered a recommendation from CEDAC that the marketing of the 
Tannery property be revisited. Don White suggested that CEDAC should come back to 
the Board with recommendations regarding the Tannery and should possibly work with 
the Planning Board to implement ideas. 
 
Dodge asked about the status of the dam project. 

 
3. Citizen Comments  

 
Deb Dodge of Camden read a letter that she had written asking the Board to consider a 
moratorium on zoning amendments until the completion of the comprehensive plan.  
 
Kristi Bifulco of Camden, proprietor of the Windward House, spoke about the current 
proposal for rental properties to be allowed to rent to guests for fewer than seven 



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of the Meeting – Page 3 
October 15, 2013 
 

consecutive days. She told the Board that if this policy were adopted, these unregulated 
rental properties would interfere with Camden's established lodging businesses.  
 
Bob Gordon of Camden encouraged the public to support the $2 million Ragged 
Mountain bond issue at the polls on November 5th.  
 
Jim Ostrowski of Camden, proprietor of the Inns at BlackBerry Common, spoke about 
the significant costs that B&Bs incur to secure operating licenses, to purchase insurance, 
and to pay business taxes, none of which apply to rental properties. He urged the Board 
to consider these factors in weighing whether to allow private homes to compete with 
lodging establishments for short-term visitors. 
 
Seeing no further public comments, the Chair opened the floor to comments from the 
Board. 
 
Leonard Lookner noted that there would be a public hearing during the upcoming week 
to discuss the proposed zoning change for Bayview Street. 

 
(Item #4, Approval of Minutes, was considered following item C in New Business.) 
 
5.   New Business 
 

A. Establish 2014 Harbor Fees 
 
Gene McKeever of the Harbor Committee along with Harbormaster Steve Pixley outlined 
proposed harbor fees and answered questions from the Board.  
 
Donald White made a motion to approve the Harbor Fees as recommended by the Harbor 
Committee. James Heard seconded the motion. It was unanimously approved. 

 
  B. Consideration of whether to rent or lease any of the commercial passenger vessel 

float space or berthing slips for the upcoming year. 
 

Lookner asked about how the windjammer fees compared to those in Rockland Harbor. 
 
Donald White made motion to allow the Town floats to be used for daysailers and 
windjammers and to seek applications for their use in 2014. James Heard seconded the motion. 
It was unanimously approved. 

 
C.  Consideration of the following committee appointments: 

 
 1) Board of Assessment Review: Karen Grove 
 
 2) Conservation Commission: Thomas Hopps  
 
 3) Camden-Rockport Pathways Committee: James MacThomas   
 
 4) Community and Economic development Committee (CEDAC): 

• Robin McIntosh  
• Dyke Messler 



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of the Meeting – Page 4 
October 15, 2013 
 

 
 Candidates Karen Grove and Tom Hopps spoke to the Board about their qualifications. 

 
Leonard Lookner made a motion to appoint Karen Grove as a regular member to the Board of 
Assessment Review (term to expire in June 2016). Donald White seconded the motion. It was 
unanimously approved. 

 
 Leonard Lookner made a motion to appoint   Thomas Hopps as a regular member to the 

Conservation Commission (term to expire in June 2016). John French seconded the motion. It 
was unanimously approved. 

 
 Martin Cates made a motion to appoint James MacThomas as an alternate member to the 

Camden-Rockport Pathways Committee (term to expire in June 2014). John French seconded 
the motion. It was unanimously approved. 
 
Deb Dodge, Chair of CEDAC, requested that the Board consider allowing three alternates on 
the committee instead of two. Cates expressed that he felt this request was a premature 
given that it had not been discussed in more detail prior to being presented to the Board. 
 
CEDAC candidates McIntosh and Messler spoke to the Board about their qualifications. 
 
Donald White made a motion to allow three alternate members on CEDAC instead of two. 
Leonard Lookner seconded the motion.  
 
Cates told the group that he would not support this motion until more discussion regarding 
expanding committees could take place.   
 
The motion passed by a vote of 4-1-0 (Cates opposed).  

 
 John French made a motion to appoint Dyke Messler and Robin McIntosh as alternate 

members to CEDAC (terms to expire in June 2014). Donald White seconded the motion. It was 
unanimously approved. 
 

4.  Approval of Select Board Minutes dated October 1, 2013 (taken out of order) 
 
James Heard made a motion to accept the minutes dated October 1, 2013 as presented. John 
French seconded the motion. It was unanimously approved.   

 
D.  Consideration of renewal and lodging and victualer license for Camden Windward 

House at 6 High Street. 
 

Leonard Lookner made a motion to approve the Victualer & Lodging licenses for Camden 
Windward House at 6 High Street. James Heard seconded the motion. It was unanimously 
approved. 

 
E. Consideration of bid proposals for plow equipment 

 
John French made a motion to approve the purchase of truck body and snow plow equipment 
from H.P. Fairfield in the amount of $65,485. Donald White seconded the motion. It was 
unanimously approved. 



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of the Meeting – Page 5 
October 15, 2013 
 
  

F.  Consideration of bid proposals for an asphalt hot patcher machine 
 

John French asked if consideration had been given to sharing equipment with other 
communities through either purchasing it with neighboring towns or contracting it out to 
them. Pat Finnigan said that this has been discussed. 
 
John French made a motion to approve the purchase of a Falcon 3 ton asphalt hot patcher for 
$27,500 from H.P. Fairfield. Donald White seconded the motion. It was unanimously approved. 

  
G.  Set the date for November Select Board Meeting 

 
John French made a motion to hold one Select Board meeting in November on November 12. 
James Heard seconded this motion. It was unanimously approved. 

 
6. Select Board Member Reports 

 
Donald White reported that the Planning Board’s public information session to be held the 
following Thursday would include a half-hour time period each for both proponents’ and 
opponents' attorneys to speak. White also noted that at the most recent meeting of the 
Planning Board they had discussed an attendance policy for members.  
 
White said he had attended the Historic Resources Committee meeting where they’d 
addressed a possible historic resource ordinance. The Planning Board has asked the 
committee to take the lead in drafting an ordinance.  
 
White reported that the Midcoast Transit Committee has made good progress in 
considering seven options presented in the preliminary report from the consultants. The 
proposed route, he said, is 14 miles long stretching from Camden to Thomaston. White 
explained that the fixed route option was the most popular among committee members, 
whereby service would be daily and hourly along Route One. The challenge, he added, is to 
find a way to complete the 14–mile loop in one hour or less because of the fact that experts 
say that a one-hour schedule is the most successful model. This will take some study to 
work out, he said.   
 
John French told the group he had attended a meeting with Northeast Mobile Health 
Services, saying they had completed over 300 runs in three months. People seemed satisfied 
with the services that the company is providing, he told the Board.  
 
Jim Heard said he had attended a meeting of Parks and Recreation, and that in addition to 
discussing toboggan weekend and the Snow Bowl, the committee is looking at possible 
improvements at Shirt Tail Point.  
 
Martin Cates reported on a meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals, saying it was an initial 
meeting and that Ed Libby was welcomed as a new member. 
 

7. Town Manager Report 
 

Pat Finnigan told the Board that the consultants’ report on the Riverwalk and Public 
Landing projects would be presented at the Select Board meeting in November.  



Camden Select Board 
Minutes of the Meeting – Page 6 
October 15, 2013 
 

 
Finnigan also reported that an accident had taken place where the fire department’s 
Assistant Chief was hit while crossing the street in a crosswalk. He is all right and on the 
mend, she reported.  
 
Lastly, the Town Manager told the group that it had been a banner weekend for chairlift 
rides and that $5000 had been raised at the pancake breakfast. 

 
8.    Closing Comments 

 
Donald White closed by reiterating that the November 5th vote is very important to the 
Town and urged citizens to come out and vote. 

 
Adjourn    
 

John French made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Donald White seconded this motion.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

 
 

  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  __________________________________________ 
  Karen Brace 
  Recording Secretary 
 
 
 















Inter-office memorandum 
November 06, 2013 

 
To:    Pat Finnigan, Camden Town Manager 
From:   Brian S. Hodges, Camden Development Director 
  Landon Fake, Parks & Recreation Director 
Subject:  Dept of Conservation (DOC) – Recreational Trails Program (RTP) grant 

The Maine DOC administers state and federal grants to provide services, resources and 
personnel to nonprofit groups, municipalities and other agencies. Grants totaling more 
than 2 million are available through the DOC's bureaus to improve and enhance 
programs offered in Maine.  The RTP has announced availability of 2014 grant funds 
provided an application is submitted by November 23, 2013.  This grant program was 
used to construct that portion of the Camden Riverwalk located at the Tannery site.  
One of the components needed for the grant submission is authorization by a 
municipality’s Select Board.  Maximum award from the RTP for trail construction is 
$35,000 with a 20% local match committed through cash and/or in-kind contributions. 

In anticipation of a positive vote to support the recently completed Camden Riverwalk 
design plan, we recommend a grant application be submitted to construct another 
phase.  I (Brian) met with advisors to the RTP in August to share not only the design 
report effort but also the construction of the Tannery parcel’s riverwalk.  They were very 
impressed with our efforts, provided good feedback, and encouraged us to apply again.  
Also discussed this grant with the Pathways Committee for their input.  After all these 
discussions it is recommended we pursue design concepts for sections 1 to 2 and 2 to 3 
as indicated in the Riverwalk plan on page 53.  This area begins at Shirttail Park, flows 
down the new sidewalk on Washington St, cuts in through Mt Battie and follows the river 
along Mt Battie that eventually connects with Mill Street.  Immediately across 
Washington Street is the Tannery section of the riverwalk. 

As other funding sources become available, we will be able to focus on additional 
sections of the Camden Riverwalk.  The cost estimate for this section is $36,605 based 
on the report recently delivered by TY Lin.  $7,321 represents our share of a 20% 
required local match. 

 

Recommended action: motion to authorize the submission of a grant application to the 
Maine Dept of Conservation’s Recreational Trail Program for $36,605 with our local 
match not to exceed $7,321.. 

http://www.camdenmaine.gov/vertical/Sites/%7B12179FA6-CABE-432E-868D-862BE81D9F03%7D/uploads/Camden_Riverwalk_Final_Report-_2013_10_31.pdf
































Recommended FY 13 Carry-forward Funds 
 
 
      Department          Amount  
 
 

General Fund: 
 
Administration (Comprehensive Plan)   $   1,927.   
    
 
Fire Department        $ 14,300.   
   
 
Police Department      $  26,236   
   
 
Public Safety Building     $    4,500 
 
 
Public Works       $103,278 
 
 
Contingency 
_____________________________________________________ 
      Total:  $150,241 
 
 
 
Wastewater Department 
 
Inflow & Infiltration       $  25,000 
 
Treatment Plant Sludge Pumps     $ 20,000 
________________________________________________________ 
      Total:  $ 45,000 
 
 
 
 
 
Note:  Carry Forward funds are requested from accounts that were budgeted in 
the prior fiscal year (FY13), and the purpose or project was not completed and 
needs to be completed in the current budget year (FY14). 
 


























	Select Board Agenda 11.12.13
	Item 3C. Public Landing Design Plans
	Item 7A. Gartley & Dorskey Engineering Services 
	Item 7C. RTP Grant - Riverwalk
	Item 7D. Wastewater Easement Sea Street
	Item 7 E. Victualer License Francines
	Item 7 F. Public  Hearing Francines
	Item 7G. FY 13 Carryforwards
	Item 7H. Powder Mill Abatement
	BOARD OF ASSESSORS
	Item 1 - 10 Sand Street
	Item 2 - 11 Beacon Avenue
	Item 3 - Mt. Battie
	Item 4 - Norumbega (Personal Property)

